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ABOUT THE COVER

On the cover is Luz F. Lalap, a microinsurace supervisor of CPMI from 
Batangas. Being consistently among the most outstanding microinsurance 
agents was not an easy feat. In the next pages, she shares with us her 
inspiring story of how she faced challenges as an agent and as an individual.
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VISION

CARD MRI is a world-class leader in microfinance 
and community-based social development 
undertakings that improves the quality of life of 
socially and economically challenged women and 
families towards nation building.

MISSION

CARD MRI is committed to:

• Empower socially and economically 
challenged women and families 
through continuous access to financial, 
microinsurance, educational, livelihood, 
health and other capacity-building services 
that eventually transform them into 
responsible citizens for their community 
and the environment;

• Enable the women members to gain control 
and ownership of financial and social 
development institutions; and

• Partner with appropriate agencies, private 
institutions, and people and community 
organizations to facilitate achievement of 
mutual goals.
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SERVING  
THE COMMUNITY 
THROUGH 
MICROINSURANCE 
Even before becoming one of the thirty-two microinsurance sales supervisors, also known as 
blackbelts, of CARD Pioneer Microinsurance Inc. (CPMI), 60-year old Luz F. Lalap has already 
demonstrated entrepreneurial skills and kindness. But she discovered that there was more she can 
offer when she joined CARD MRI Insurance Agency (CaMIA), CPMI’s selling arm.
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Before becoming a microinsurance agent (MIA), I 
managed a ready-to-wear (RTW) tailoring business 
with the help of my four children. I always invested in 
different type of businesses, from a computer shop 
and prepaid cell phone loading to egg delivery, cow 
raising, and beauty product selling. Though small-
scale, I was able to get all my children to finish their 
studies with the help of my husband who worked 
overseas.

I joined CARD in 2004 and became a center chief a 
year after. In 2007, the CaMIA Package Assistance in 
case of Disaster (CaMIA PAID) Plan was launched and 
I was among the handful of agents to first promote 
and offer it.

Together with the CaMIA staff, I introduced CaMIA 
PAID Plan in Batangas and nearby communities. I 
visited nine centers each month to explain to CARD 
members and their families the importance of 
insurance in times of uncertainties. A month after 
the launch of the CaMIA PAID Plan, I was named one 
of the top three sellers and had been a consistent 
outstanding MIA from then on.

Blackbelts

After five years, I was recognized as a CAPiling 

Awardee. I was overjoyed that my efforts were 
acknowledged. More than anything, I think it was my 
commitment to serve my community that made it 
possible to become a blackbelt in March 2014. 

During this time, little did I know that I was to face 
a challenge, not as an agent but as a mother. My 
youngest son got sick and had to go through two years 
of medication. We sold our cows, applied for a loan 
from CARD and contributed the monetary incentive 
I received from being a CAPiling Awardee to pay for 
his hospitalization. I was thankful that being a CARD 
member and an agent enabled me to help him in this 
unfortunate situation. 

As a blackbelt, I work with 26 MIAs and give support 
by training them to be effective communicator of the 
CaMIA PAID Plan benefits. Meanwhile, CPMI taught 
us sales strategies to boost enrolments, which I 
share with my MIAs. With these efforts, Batangas 1 is 
constantly among the top five performing provincial 
offices in the Philippines.

CPMI, which started operations on January 
2014, is a new institution of CARD MRI that 
aims to address calamity, agriculture and 
income loss insurance needs of the socially 
and economically-challenged market.
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Dealing with barriers and climate change

Taking the lead in spreading awareness about the 
importance of insurance was not an easy feat for me. 
I had to endure hardships and break barriers along 
the way. My MIAs and I faced rejections from other 
people. Nevertheless, we made sure that we were 
able to explain the advantage of being insured.

I never get tired of giving talks and bringing insurance 
closer to people because I have seen how regret eats 
up a person when unfortunate things happen to their 
loved ones. One of the moments I will never forget 
was when a member did not push through with the 
insurance enrolment of her husband because she 
had to use the money for her child’s field trip. She 
had to postpone getting the insurance for another 
week. Sadly, her husband died in an accident a few 
days later.

In 2014, typhoon Glenda ravaged South Luzon, 
leaving damages to properties. Along with the staff 
and six MIAs, I visited the affected clients to validate 
insurance claims.

We had to endure muddy trails and withstand fatigue 
from long hours in the field. But this was nothing 
compared to facing the wrath of some members who 
thought they did not get the amount of benefit they 
deserved. I was screamed and cursed at.

I almost gave up but I realized that it was just a 
challenge. Despite the exhaustion, I kept calm and 
tried to explain to the clients that there are guidelines 
being followed in computing for the amount to be 
paid.
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Top agent secrets

Being part of CaMIA and later on CPMI, I grew as a 
person, as a woman and as an intellectual. I learned 
to be more understanding of the people around me. 
My experiences as an agent opened my eyes to the 
need to be eager to learn to improve oneself. In line 
with this, CPMI pushed through with improving its 
business process by automating the selling process 
and conducting trainings. CPMI has provided 
MIAs with tablets equipped with a mobile selling 
application that they can use to take on enrolments.

If you ask me the secret to becoming a top 
performing agent, I would say it is pure hard work 
and the determination to touch other people’s lives. 
I often advise MIA applicants during interviews that 
those who have the time and the heart to serve are 
the ones who last in this line of work.

When I joined CARD, I knew myself as a disciplined 
person but when I became a microinsurance 
agent I became more disciplined and humbled. I 
am now more concerned on what is happening 
around me. Even a simple jeepney ride was turned 
into an opportunity to help when I overheard two 
passengers talking about their financial problems 
related to a loss of a loved one. I invited them over 
to the center where they can learn what they can do 
to prepare for times of uncertainties.

Helping other people is one of my biggest 
achievements. Nothing compares to the fulfillment 
I get by helping others in my own little way. I’m not 
a perfect person but I’m happy and I have peace of 
mind knowing that I was able to help them through 
CARD.
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Tackling climate change

CPMI stood by its clients, protecting them and 
helping them recover from the destruction brought 
by typhoons that hit the country. In 2014, almost 
200M in claims were paid to thousands of affected 
clients. Moreover, the CPMI, being the country’s first 
non-life microinsurance company, is also constantly 
facing barriers in running a business sustainably 
where there is no blueprint ahead of them. 

CPMI President Geric G. Laude said that they are 
attempting to do something that hasn’t been done 
before, hence, they are bound to try various options 
and sometimes take missteps from which they 
learn from, before arriving at the best solution.  To 
overcome this challenge, they need to be patient, 
able to accept failures, make calculated risks and 
quickly recover to carry out necessary adjustments 
in a timely manner. Fortunately, CPMI is being 
mentored by two organizations that are experts in 
their respective fields; the CARD MRI and Pioneer 
Insurance.

The CPMI proactively tackles the challenges of 
climate change. According to President Laude, “it 
has become a constant challenge as we enter a 
phase in our history where nature plays its tricks 
to the point where we can no longer merely look 
at what happened in the past but also factor in the 
unknowns of the future.”

New Products

In line with our mission to develop non-life 
microinsurance products which address the changing 
needs of our clients, CPMI will be launching the 
following products in 2015:

• MediCash –  insurance against dengue and 
leptospirosis

• NegoSure – insurance designed for sari sari 
store owners
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PRESIDENT’S 
REPORT
“In an effort to show our commitment to be there 
for our clients continuously, CPMI started revisiting 
existing products and identifying those that are no 
longer in tune with the new reality that is climate 
change. We want to make sure that we are provid-
ing relevant products that will benefit members but 
are also sustainable for the stakeholders of CPMI.”

Geric G. Laude
President and CEO

CARD Pioneer Microinsurance Inc.
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MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

Geric G. Laude
President and CEO

Vener S. Abellera
Executive Vice President and Treasurer

Ma. Olivia C. Valera
Corporate Secretary
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Ariste A. Dequito
Director

May S. Dawat
Board Member

David C. Coyukiat
Board Member

Atty. Jomer H. Aquino
Independent Director

Lorenzo O. Chan
Board Member

Geric G. Laude
Board Member

Vitaliano N. Nañagas
Independent Director
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DIRECTORS
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341,368
30,213

PRINCIPAL 

SPOUSE 

59,676 CHILD 

NUMBER OF LIVES COVERED

14
6

NANAYS

CARD PIONEER STAFF

7 CARD STAFF

BLACKBELTS

MICROINSURANCE AGENTS
984
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Team Building
A team building 

activity was 
conducted to 

promote teamwork 
and strengthen 

the bond among 
CPMI staff and 
management.
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 2,068,465 
 132,873 

TOTAL # OF CARD MEMBERS

PAID PLAN SOLD TO MEMBERS

OVER-ALL PERFORMANCE

 289,130 2013 TOTAL ENROLMENT

89,409
84,385

MEMBER

NON-MEMBER

173,794 TOTAL RENEWED FOR 2014

Mobile training
MIAgents underwent a training on how to 

facilitate faster and more efficient transactions 
using mobile tablets in CARD-MRI Development 

Training Institute, Inc. in Bay, Laguna.
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FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
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*SGVFS009510*

CARD PIONEER MICROINSURANCE INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31
2014 2013

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Notes 4 and 26) P=414,226,764 P=483,132,427
Insurance Receivables - net (Notes 5 and 26) 38,688,912 4,616,334
Financial Assets (Notes 6 and 26)

Available-for-sale financial assets 20,000 20,000
Held-to-maturity investments 105,675,721 63,973,675

Interest Receivable (Notes 7 and 27) 1,923,538 2,128,364
Deferred Acquisition Costs (Note 8) 9,016,532 1,126,403
Reinsurance Assets (Notes 9 and 27) 1,296,980 49,224
Investment Properties - net (Note 10) 10 10
Property and Equipment - net (Note 11) 3,933,096 –
Deferred Tax Assets - net (Note 21) 25,703,865 477,287
Other Assets 4,215,743 453,353

P=604,701,161 P=555,977,077

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities (Note 12) P=72,415,500 P=8,416,152
Insurance payables (Note 13) 2,582,646 1,970,203
Deferred reinsurance commissions (Note 8) 324,824 –
Pension liability (Note 14) 1,800,186 –
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (Note 15) 30,802,045 1,248,240
Income tax payable – 126,544

107,925,201 11,761,139

Equity
Capital stock (Note 16) 490,196,100 490,196,100
Contributed surplus (Note 16) 28,823,532 28,823,532
Retained earnings (Deficit) (22,243,672) 25,196,306

496,775,960 544,215,938
P=604,701,161 P=555,977,077

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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*SGVFS009510*

CARD PIONEER MICROINSURANCE INC.
STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31
2014 2013

REVENUE
Gross earned premiums on insurance contracts (Note 17) P=35,574,605 P=13,015,881
Reinsurers’ share of gross earned premiums on

insurance contracts (Note 17) 16,791,833 –
Net earned premiums 18,782,772 13,015,881
Investment and other income (Note 18) 17,041,099 22,118,110
Commission income (Note 8) 283,924 –
Foreign currency exchange gains - net 63,911 362,586

36,171,706 35,496,577

BENEFITS, CLAIMS AND EXPENSES
Gross insurance contract benefits and claims paid

(Notes 12 and 19) 81,149,222 2,818,214
Reinsurers’ share of gross insurance contract benefits

and claims paid (Notes 12 and 19) (31,055,034) (721,416)
Gross change in insurance contract liabilities (Note 12) 25,288,953 (814,139)
Reinsurers’ share of gross change in insurance

contract liabilities (Note 12) – 721,416
Net insurance benefits and claims (Note 12 ) 75,383,141 2,004,075
Commission expense (Note 8) 6,901,811 2,131,779
General expenses (Note 20) 22,783,968 8,130,718
Interest expense (Notes 13 and 27) 265,612 79,775
Provision for impairment losses (Note 5) 110,393 443,250

105,444,925 12,789,597

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX (69,273,219) 22,706,980

PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX
(Note 21) (21,833,241) 3,459,129

NET INCOME (LOSS) (P=47,439,978) P=19,247,851

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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*SGVFS009510*

CARD PIONEER MICROINSURANCE INC.
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31
2014 2013

NET INCOME( LOSS) (P=47,439,978) P=19,247,851

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss

Fair value gains on available-for-sale financial assets
 (Note 6) – 167,963
Transfer to profit and loss (Note 6 ) – (557,039)

– (389,076)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (P=47,439,978) P=18,858,775

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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*SGVFS009510*

CARD PIONEER MICROINSURANCE INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31
2014 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) before income tax (P=69,273,219) P=22,706,980
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization 588,428 –
Interest expense 265,612 79,775
Provision for impairment losses (Note 5) 110,393 –
Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets – 443,250
Gain on sale of real estate properties for sale – (128,761)
Dividend income – (290,543)
Gain on sale of available-for-sale financial assets – (1,000,289)
Gain on sale of investment property – (8,054,582)
Interest income (Note 18) (17,041,099) (12,643,935)

Operating income (loss) before changes in working capital (85,349,885) 1,111,895
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Decrease (increase) in:
Insurance receivables (Note 5) (34,182,971) (2,140,387)
Deferred acquisition costs (7,890,129) (89,791)
Reinsurance assets (1,247,755) 721,416
Other assets (3,762,392) 62,942

Increase (decrease) in:
Insurance contract liabilities (Note 12) 63,999,348 (750,923)
Insurance payables 612,445 (811,922)
Deferred reinsurance commissions 324,824 –
Net pension liability 1,800,186 –
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 29,427,259 684,049

Net cash used in operations (36,269,070) (1,212,721)
Interest paid (265,612) (79,775)
Income tax paid (3,393,336) (3,282,360)
Net cash used in operating activities (39,928,018) (4,574,856)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale/maturities of:

Short-term investments – 4,365,397
Available-for-sale financial assets – 7,836,008
Held-to-maturity investments (Note 6) 6,250,000 3,200,000
Investment property – 8,054,592
Real estate properties for sale – 11,719,580

Acquisitions of:
Held-to-maturity investments (Note 6) (48,267,540) (3,636,177)
Property and equipment (Note 11) (4,206,030) –

Interest received 17,245,925 11,671,040
Dividends received – 290,543
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (28,977,645) 43,500,983

(Forward)
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*SGVFS009510*

- 2 -

Years Ended December 31
2014 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of shares of stock P=– P=240,196,100
Additions to contributed surplus – 24,711,233
Dividends paid to stockholders – (34,130,585)
Net cash flows provided by financing activities – 230,776,748

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (68,905,663) 269,702,875

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 483,132,427 213,429,552

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR (Note 4) P=414,226,764 P=483,132,427

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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*SGVFS009510*

CARD PIONEER MICROINSURANCE INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

CARD Pioneer Microinsurance Inc. (the Company), formerly known as Pioneer Asia Insurance
Corporation, was incorporated in the Philippines and registered with the Philippine Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) on August 16, 1963.

The Company is engaged in the business of nonlife insurance, indemnifying others against loss,
damage or liability arising from unknown or contingent events.

On June 26, 2013, the Board of Directors (BOD) authorized the amendment of the Articles of
Incorporation for the change of corporate name and for the increase in authorized capital stock
from P=250,000,000, divided into 500,000 common shares with a par value of P=500 per share to
P=500,000,000, divided into 5,000,000 common shares with a par value of P=100 per share.  In
addition, the BOD approved the issuance of 2,303,921 shares and 98,040 shares to Center for
Agriculture & Rural Development (CARD) Mutual Benefit Association, Inc. (CARD MBA) and
CARD MRI Insurance Agency, Inc. (CaMia), respectively, with par value of P=100 per share (see
Note 16).

The Company is 47.85% owned by Pioneer Insurance and Surety Corporation (PISC), 47.00% by
CARD MBA, 2.00% by CaMia, 1.51% by Pioneer Intercontinental Insurance Corporation (PIIC),
1.42% by Pioneer Life Inc. and 0.22% by Pioneer Life Holdings, Inc. (PLHI).

The registered office address of the Company is Pioneer House, 108 Paseo de Roxas, Legaspi
Village, Makati City.

The Company’s financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the BOD on
February 23, 2015.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
quoted available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets which have been measured at fair value.  The
financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (P=), which is also the Company’s functional
currency.  All amounts are rounded off to the nearest peso unit, unless otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).
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*SGVFS009510*

Adoption of New and Amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for
the following new and amended standards and interpretations which became effective as of
January 1, 2014.

· Investment Entities (Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, PFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, and PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements)
These amendments provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that
meet the definition of an investment entity under PFRS 10.  The exception to consolidation
requires investment entities to account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss.
These amendments have no impact to the Company, since it has no interest in other entities
which qualify as investment entities under PFRS 10.

· PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (Amendments)
These amendments clarify the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off’
and the criteria for non-simultaneous settlement mechanisms of clearing houses to qualify for
offsetting and are applied retrospectively. The amendments did not have any impact on the
Company since it has no offsetting arrangements.

· PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting (Amendments)
These amendments provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a
derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets certain criteria and retrospective
application is required. The amendments did not have any impact on the Company’s financial
position or performance since it has no hedging instruments.

· PAS 36, Impairment of Assets - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
(Amendments)
These amendments remove the unintended consequences of PFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement, on the disclosures required under PAS 36.  In addition, these amendments
require disclosure of the recoverable amounts for assets or cash-generating units (CGUs) for
which impairment loss has been recognized or reversed during the period.  These amendments
are effective retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.  The
amendments will have no impact on the Company’s financial statements since it has no
impaired non- financial assets.

· Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Levies (IFRIC 21)
IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognizes a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers
payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. For a levy that is triggered upon
reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no liability should be
anticipated before the specified minimum threshold is reached. Retrospective application is
required for IFRIC 21. The interpretation will not have any impact in the Company’s financial
statements since it does not enter into transactions involving levies.
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Annual improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to the following standards:

· Amendment to PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Short-term Receivables and Payables
The amendment clarifies that short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rates
can be held at invoice amounts when the effect of discounting is immaterial.  The amendment
did not have an impact on the Company’s financial position or performance since the
Company’s policy is already consistent with the amendment.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to the following standards:

· PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards - Meaning of
‘Effective PFRSs’
The amendment clarifies that an entity may choose to apply either a current standard or a new
standard that is not yet mandatory, but that permits early application, provided either standard
is applied consistently throughout the periods presented in the entity’s first PFRS financial
statements.  This amendment is not applicable to the Company as it is not a first-time adopter
of PFRS.

Future Change in Accounting Policies
The Group will adopt the following new and amended standards and interpretations enumerated
below when these becomes effective.

Effective in 2015

· PAS 19, Employee Benefits- Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions
The amendments apply to contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit
plans.  Contributions that are set out in the formal terms of the plan shall be accounted for as
reductions to current service costs if they are linked to service or as part of the
remeasurements of the net defined benefit asset or liability if they are not linked to service.
Contributions that are discretionary shall be accounted for as reductions of current service cost
upon payment of these contributions to the plans.  The amendments to PAS 19 are to be
retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014.  This amendment
is not expected to have an impact to the Company since it has no defined benefit plan with
contributions from employees or third parties.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010 - 2012 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle) are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2015.

· PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Definition of Vesting Condition
The amendment revised the definitions of vesting condition and market condition and added
the definitions of performance condition and service condition to clarify various issues.  This
amendment shall be prospectively applied to share-based payment transactions for which the
grant date is on or after July 1, 2014.  This amendment does not apply to the Company as it
has no share-based payments.
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· Amendment to PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Accounting for Contingent Consideration in
a Business Combination
The amendment clarifies that a contingent consideration that meets the definition of a
financial instrument should be classified as a financial liability or as equity in accordance with
PAS 32.  Contingent consideration that is not classified as equity is subsequently measured at
fair value through profit or loss whether or not it falls within the scope of PFRS 9 (or PAS 39,
if PFRS 9 is not yet adopted).  The amendment shall be prospectively applied to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after July 1, 2014.  The Company shall
consider this amendment for future business combinations.

· Amendment to PFRS 8, Operating Segments - Aggregation of Operating Segments and
Reconciliation of the Total of the Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entity’s Assets
The amendments require entities to disclose the judgment made by management in
aggregating two or more operating segments.  This disclosure should include a brief
description of the operating segments that have been aggregated in this way and the economic
indicators that have been assessed in determining that the aggregated operating segments share
similar economic characteristics.  The amendments also clarify that an entity shall provide
reconciliations of the total of the reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets if such
amounts are regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker.  These amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and are applied retrospectively.
The amendments have no impact on the Company’s financial statements since it does not have
operating segments.

· Amendment to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Revaluation Method - Proportionate
Restatement of Accumulated Depreciation
The amendment clarifies that, upon revaluation of an item of property, plant and equipment,
the carrying amount of the asset shall be adjusted to the revalued amount, and the asset shall
be treated in one of the following ways:

a. The gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation
of the carrying amount of the asset.  The accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is adjusted to equal the difference between the gross carrying amount and the
carrying amount of the asset after taking into account any accumulated impairment losses.

b. The accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset.

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014.  The
amendment shall apply to all revaluations recognized in annual periods beginning on or after
the date of initial application of this amendment and in the immediately preceding annual
period.  The amendment has no impact on the Company’s financial position or performance
since the Company does not carry its property and equipment at revalued amount.

· Amendment to PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures - Key Management Personnel
The amendments clarify that an entity is a related party of the reporting entity if the said
entity, or any member of a group for which it is a part of, provides key management personnel
services to the reporting entity or to the parent company of the reporting entity.  The
amendments also clarify that a reporting entity that obtains management personnel services
from another entity (also referred to as management entity) is not required to disclose the
compensation paid or payable by the management entity to its employees or directors.  The
reporting entity is required to disclose the amounts incurred for the key management
personnel services provided by a separate management entity.  The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and are applied retrospectively.  The
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amendments affect disclosures only and have no impact on Company’s financial position or
performance.

· Amendment to PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Revaluation Method - Proportionate Restatement
of Accumulated Amortization
The amendments clarify that, upon revaluation of an intangible asset, the carrying amount of
the asset shall be adjusted to the revalued amount, and the asset shall be treated in one of the
following ways:

a. The gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation
of the carrying amount of the asset. The accumulated amortization at the date of
revaluation is adjusted to equal the difference between the gross carrying amount and the
carrying amount of the asset after taking into account any accumulated impairment losses.

b. The accumulated amortization is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset.

The amendments also clarify that the amount of the adjustment of the accumulated
amortization should form part of the increase or decrease in the carrying amount accounted for
in accordance with the standard.  The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after July 1, 2014.  The amendments shall apply to all revaluations recognized in annual
periods beginning on or after the date of initial application of this amendment and in the
immediately preceding annual period.  The amendments have no impact on the Company’s
financial position or performance since the Company has no intangible assets.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to the following standards:

· PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangements
The amendment clarifies that PFRS 3 does not apply to the accounting for the formation of a
joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.  The amendment
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and is applied prospectively.
The amendment is not applicable to the Company since it has not entered into any joint
arrangements.

· PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Portfolio Exception
The amendment clarifies that the portfolio exception in PFRS 13 can be applied to financial
assets, financial liabilities and other contracts.  The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and is applied prospectively.  The amendment will have no
impact on the Company’s financial position or performance since the Company’s policy is
already consistent with the improvement.

· PAS 40, Investment Property
The amendment clarifies the interrelationship between PFRS 3 and PAS 40 when classifying
property as investment property or owner-occupied property.  The amendment stated that
judgment is needed when determining whether the acquisition of investment property is the
acquisition of an asset or a group of assets or a business combination within the scope of
PFRS 3.  This judgment is based on the guidance of PFRS 3.  This amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and is applied prospectively.  The Company
shall consider this amendment for future acquisition of investment property.
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Effective in 2016

· PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization (Amendments)
The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset.  As a result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may
only be used in very limited circumstances to amortize intangible assets.  The amendments are
effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early
adoption permitted.  These amendments will not have an impact to the Company’s financial
statements given that the Company has not used a revenue-based method to depreciate its
property and equipment.

· PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 41, Agriculture - Bearer Plants
(Amendments)
The amendments change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments, biological assets that meet the definition of
bearer plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41. Instead, PAS 16 will apply. After
initial recognition, bearer plants will be measured under PAS 16 at accumulated cost (before
maturity) and using either the cost model or revaluation model (after maturity). The
amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will remain in the scope of
PAS 41 and is measured at fair value less costs to sell. For government grants related to bearer
plants, PAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance,
will apply. The amendments are retrospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments will not have an
impact to the Company’s financial statements since the Company is not involved in any
agricultural activities.

· PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements - Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
(Amendments)
The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. Entities
already applying PFRS and electing to change to the equity method in its separate financial
statements will have to apply that change retrospectively.  For first-time adopters of PFRS
electing to use the equity method in its separate financial statements, they will be required to
apply this method from the date of transition to PFRS. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. The
amendment has no impact on the Company’s financial statements since the Company does not
have interest in other entities.

· PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture
These amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in
PFRS 10 and those in PAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require that a full
gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a
subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that
do not constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. These
amendments are effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016.  These
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amendments will not have an impact on the Company’s financial statements since it does not
have investment in associates.

· PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
(Amendments)
The amendments to PFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an
interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business
must apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting. The
amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured
on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint control is
retained. In addition, scope exclusion has been added to PFRS 11 to specify that the
amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting
entity, are under common control of the same ultimate controlling party.

The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and
the acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption
permitted. These amendments will not have any impact to the Company’s financial
statements since the Company does not expect to enter into any joint arrangements.

· PFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts
PFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rate-
regulation, to continue applying most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory
deferral account balances upon its first-time adoption of PFRS. Entities that adopt PFRS 14
must present the regulatory deferral accounts as separate line items on the statement of
financial position and present movements in these account balances as separate line items in
the statement of profit or loss and OCI. The standard requires disclosures on the nature of,
and risks associated with, the entity’s rate-regulation and the effects of that rate-regulation on
its financial statements. PFRS 14 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2016. The amendment will not have an impact on the Company’s financial statements
since the Company is an existing PFRS preparer and has no activities subject to rate
regulation.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2016.

· PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in
Methods of Disposal
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that changing from a disposal through
sale to a disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa should not be considered to
be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan. There is, therefore,
no interruption of the application of the requirements in PFRS 5. The amendment will not
have an impact on the Company’s financial statements since the Company does not have
non-current assets held for sale nor any discontinued operations.

· PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Servicing Contracts
PFRS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in a
transferred asset that is derecognized in its entirety. The amendment clarifies that a servicing
contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial asset. An
entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance in PFRS 7 in
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order to assess whether the disclosures are required. The amendment is to be applied such
that the assessment of which servicing contracts constitute continuing involvement will need
to be done retrospectively. The amendment will not have an impact on the Company’s
financial statement since the Company is not a party to any servicing contracts.

· PFRS 7, Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial
Statements
This amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on offsetting of
financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim financial
report unless they provide a significant update to the information reported in the most recent
annual report.  The amendments will not have any impact on the Company’s financial
statements since it does not offset its financial instruments.

· PAS 19, Employee Benefits - regional market issue regarding discount rate
This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated,
rather than the country where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for
high quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be used.   The
amendments will not have an impact on the Company’s financial statements since the
Company does not have defined benefit plans.

· PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting - disclosure of information ‘elsewhere in the interim
financial report
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the required interim disclosures
must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between
the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within the greater interim
financial report (e.g., in the management commentary or risk report).  The amendments will
not have an impact on the Company’s financial statements since it is not required to issue
interim financial statements.

Effective in 2018

· PFRS 9, Financial Instruments – Classification and Measurement (2010 version)
PFRS 9 (2010 version) reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 39 and applies to
the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities as defined in PAS 39,
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.  PFRS 9 requires all financial assets
to be measured at fair value at initial recognition.  A debt financial asset may, if the fair value
option (FVO) is not invoked, be subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a
business model that has the objective to hold the assets to collect the contractual cash flows
and its contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.  All other debt instruments are
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss.  All equity financial assets are
measured at fair value either through other comprehensive income (OCI) or profit or loss.
Equity financial assets held for trading must be measured at fair value through profit or loss.
For FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable to
changes in credit risk must be presented in OCI.  The remainder of the change in fair value is
presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change in respect of the
liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
All other PAS 39 classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities have
been carried forward into PFRS 9, including the embedded derivative separation rules and the
criteria for using the FVO The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will not have an impact
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in the Company's classification and measurement of financial instruments since it has no
investment classified as FVPL.

PFRS 9 (2010 version) is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015.
This mandatory adoption date was moved to January 1, 2018 when the final version of
PFRS 9 was adopted by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC). Such
adoption, however, is still for approval by the Board of Accountancy (BOA).

· PFRS 9, Financial Instruments - Hedge Accounting and amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7 and
PAS 39 (2013 version)
PFRS 9 (2013 version) already includes the third phase of the project to replace PAS 39
which pertains to hedge accounting.  This version of PFRS 9 replaces the rules-based hedge
accounting model of PAS 39 with a more principles-based approach.  Changes include
replacing the rules-based hedge effectiveness test with an objectives-based test that focuses
on the economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, and the
effect of credit risk on that economic relationship; allowing risk components to be designated
as the hedged item, not only for financial items but also for non-financial items, provided that
the risk component is separately identifiable and reliably measurable; and allowing the time
value of an option, the forward element of a forward contract and any foreign currency basis
spread to be excluded from the designation of a derivative instrument as the hedging
instrument and accounted for as costs of hedging. PFRS 9 also requires more extensive
disclosures for hedge accounting.

PFRS 9 (2013 version) has no mandatory effective date. The mandatory effective date of
January 1, 2018 was eventually set when the final version of PFRS 9 was adopted by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC). The adoption of the final version of PFRS 9,
however, is still for approval by Board of Accountancy (BOA).

The amendments will not have an impact on the Company’s financial statements since the
Company is not involved in any hedging transactions.

· PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014 or final version)
In July 2014, the final version of PFRS 9 was issued. PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the
financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39 and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The
standard introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and
hedge accounting. PFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but comparative
information is not compulsory. Early application of previous versions of PFRS 9 is permitted
if the date of initial application is before February 1, 2015.

The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and
measurement of the Company’s financial assets but will have no impact on the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities.

No effective date yet

· Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The interpretation
requires that revenue on construction of real estate be recognized only upon completion,
except when such contract qualifies as construction contract to be accounted for under PAS 11
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or involves rendering of services in which case revenue is recognized based on stage of
completion. Contracts involving provision of services with the construction materials and
where the risks and reward of ownership are transferred to the buyer on a continuous basis
will also be accounted for based on stage of completion.  The SEC and the Financial
Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) have deferred the effectivity of this interpretation until
the final Revenue standard is issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
and an evaluation of the requirements of the final Revenue standard against the practices of
the Philippine real estate industry is completed.  Adoption of the interpretation will not have
any impact on the financial statements of the Company since it is not involved in the
construction of real estate.

· IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer.  The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach to measuring and recognizing revenue.  The new revenue standard is
applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under
IFRS. Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2017 with early adoption permitted. The Company is
currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required
effective date once adopted locally.

Translation of Foreign Currency-Denominated Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate ruling at the
date of the transaction.  Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated using the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date.
Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate as at the date of the initial transaction and are not subsequently
restated.  All foreign exchange differences are taken to the statement of income.

Product Classification
Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant
insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders
if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders.  As a
general guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by
comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur.  Insurance
contracts can also transfer financial risk.

The significance of insurance risk is dependent on both the probability of an insured event and the
magnitude of its potential effect.  As a general guideline, the Company defines significant
insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event
that are at least 10% more than the benefits payable if the insured event did not occur.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for
the remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period,
unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or have expired.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks.  Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three
months or less from dates of placement and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value and are free of any encumbrances.
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Short-term Investments
Placements in time deposits and other money market instruments with original maturities of more
than three months but less than one year are classified as short-term investments.

Insurance Receivables
Insurance receivables are recognized on policy inception dates and measured on initial recognition
at the fair value of the consideration.  Subsequent to initial recognition, insurance receivables are
measured at amortized cost.  The carrying value of insurance receivables is reviewed for
impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be
recoverable, with impairment loss recorded in the statement of income.  Insurance receivables are
derecognized following the derecognition criteria of financial assets.

Financial Instruments
Date of recognition
Financial instruments are recognized on the date when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.  Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace
are recognized on the trade date.

Initial recognition
Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value which includes transaction costs.  The
Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: AFS financial assets, held-to-
maturity (HTM) investments and loans and receivables.  The Company classifies its financial
liabilities into other financial liabilities.  The classification depends on the purpose for which the
investments were acquired and whether they are quoted in an active market.  Management
determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every reporting date.

Determination of fair value
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

· In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
· In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at the end of the reporting period
is based on their quoted market price or dealer price quotations, without any deduction for
transaction costs.  When current market prices are not available, the price of the most recent
transaction provides evidence of the current fair value as long as there has not been a significant
change in economic circumstances since the time of the transaction.
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For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined by
using appropriate valuation techniques.  Valuation techniques include net present value
techniques, comparison to similar instruments for which observable current market prices exist,
option pricing models, and other relevant valuation models.  Any difference noted between the fair
value and the transaction price is recognized in the statement of income, unless it qualifies for
recognition as some type of asset or liability.

Fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of
financial assets by valuation technique:
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair

value are observable in the market, either directly or indirectly
Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value

that are not based on observable market data.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company classifies all of its quoted AFS financial assets
under Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.  There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2
fair value measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurement.

Day 1 difference
Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value from other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ profit or loss) in the statement of income
unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset.  In cases where an unobservable data
is used, the difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in the
statement of income when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized.
For each transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of recognizing the ‘Day 1’
profit or loss amount.

AFS financial assets
AFS financial assets are those which are designated as such or do not qualify to be classified as
financial assets at FVPL, HTM investments or loans and receivables.  They are purchased and
held indefinitely, and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market
conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.  The
effective yield component of AFS debt securities, as well as the impact of restatement on foreign
currency-denominated AFS debt securities, is reported in earnings.  Interest earned on holding
AFS financial assets is reported as interest income using the effective interest method.  Dividends
earned on holding AFS financial assets are recognized in the statement of income when the right
to receive payment has been established.  The gains and losses arising from the fair valuation of
AFS financial assets are reported as “Fair value gains (losses) on available-for-sale financial
assets” in the statement of comprehensive income.  The losses arising from impairment of such
financial assets are reported as “Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets” in the
statement of income.  When a security is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized as other comprehensive income is reported “Investment and other income” in the
statement of income.
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When the fair value of AFS financial assets cannot be measured reliably because of lack of
reliable estimates of future cash flows and discount rates necessary to calculate the fair value of
unquoted equity instruments, these investments are carried at cost, less any allowance for
impairment loss.

HTM investments
HTM investments are quoted nonderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities for which the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity.  These investments are initially recognized at cost, including all transaction costs, being
the fair value of the consideration paid for the acquisition of investment.  Where the Company
sells other than an insignificant amount of HTM investments, the entire category would be tainted
and reclassified as AFS financial assets.  After initial measurement, these investments are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment
in value.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (EIR).  The effective interest amortization
is included in “Interest income” under “Investment and other income” in the statement of income.
Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of income when the HTM investments are
derecognized and impaired, as well as through the amortization process.  The effects of
restatement on foreign currency denominated HTM investments are recognized in the statement of
income.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that are not quoted in an active market.  They are not entered into with the intention of
immediate or short-term resale and are not classified as financial assets held-for-trading, nor
designated as AFS or at FVPL.

After initial measurement, the loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.  Amortized cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate.  The amortization is included under “Investment income” in the
statement of income.  The losses arising from impairment of such loans and receivables are
recognized as “Provision for impairment losses” in the statement of income.

This accounting policy relates to the statement of financial position captions “Cash and cash
equivalents”, “Short-term investments”, “Insurance receivables” and “Interest receivable”.

Other financial liabilities
Issued financial liabilities or their components, which are not designated as financial liabilities at
FVPL are classified as other financial liabilities, where the substance of the contractual
arrangement results in the Company having an obligation either to deliver cash or another
financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method.  Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
Any effects of restatement of foreign currency-denominated liabilities are recognized in the
statement of income.
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This accounting policy relates to the statement of financial position captions:  “Insurance
payables” and “Accrued expenses and other liabilities” that meet the above definition (other than
liabilities covered by other accounting standards, such as pension liability and income tax
payable).

Classification of Financial Instruments Between Debt and Equity
A financial instrument is classified as debt, if it has a contractual obligation to:

· deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity, or
· exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are

potentially unfavourable to the Company.

If the Company does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial
asset to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial liability.

Financial instruments are classified as liability or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual agreement.  Interests, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or a
component that is a financial liability, are reported as expense or income.  Distributions to holders
of financial instrument classified as equity are charged directly to equity net of any related income
tax benefits.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement
of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired.

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.  Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower, or a
group of borrowers, is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization, and where observable data indicate that there is measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Insurance receivables
A provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Company will not be able to
collect all of the amounts due under the terms agreed with the counterparty.  The carrying amount
of the receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
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AFS financial assets carried at fair value
For equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, impairment indicators would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost or where other
objective evidence of impairment exists.  Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative
loss (measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in the statement of income) is
removed from the statement of comprehensive income and recognized in the statement of income.
Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through profit or loss.  Increases in fair
value after impairment are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost.  Future interest income is based on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring impairment loss and is recorded as part of “Investment
income” in the statement of income.  If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
increased and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognized in the statement of income, the impairment loss is reversed through the
statement of income.

AFS financial assets carried at cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unquoted equity
instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on
a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset.

Loans and receivables
For loans and receivables carried at amortized cost, the Company first assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.  If the Company determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses for impairment.  Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be recognized, are not
included in a collective assessment for impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted using the original effective interest rate.  The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account.  The amount of the loss is
recognized as “Provision for impairment losses” in the statement of income.

Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount based on the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral, if any, has been realized or has been transferred to the Company.
If in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account.  If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is recognized in the statement of income.  Any subsequent reversal of an
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impairment loss is recognized in the statement of income, to the extent that the carrying value of
the asset does not exceed what would have been its amortized cost at the reversal date had their
been no impairment.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial asset
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized when
· the right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
· the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an

obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; or

· the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a ‘pass-through’ arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement in the asset.  Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of the consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligations under the liabilities has expired, or is
discharged or cancelled.  Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the statement of income.

Reinsurance
The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for all of its businesses.
Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies.  Amounts recoverable
from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision or
settled claims associated with the reinsurer’s policies and are in accordance with the related
reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or more frequently when an
indication of impairment arises during the reporting year.  Impairment occurs when there is
objective evidence as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance
asset that the Company may not receive all outstanding amounts due under the terms of the
contract and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the Company will
receive from the reinsurers.  The impairment loss is recorded in the statement of income.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders.
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The Company also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business.  Premiums and
claims on assumed reinsurance are recognized as income and expenses in the same manner as they
would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account the product
classification of the reinsured business.  Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to
reinsurance companies, which are included under “Insurance payables” in the statement of
financial position.  Amounts payable are estimated in a manner consistent with the associated
reinsurance contract.

Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognized when the contractual rights are extinguished or
expired, or when the contract is transferred to another party.

Reinsurance contracts that do not transfer significant insurance risk are accounted for directly
through the statement of financial position.  These are deposit assets or financial liabilities that are
recognized based on the consideration paid or received less any explicit identified premiums or
fees to be retained by the reinsured.  Investment income on these contracts is accounted for using
the effective interest method.

Deferred Acquisition Costs (DAC) and Deferred Reinsurance Commissions
Costs that vary with and are primarily related to the acquisition of new and renewal insurance
contracts are deferred and charged against income using the 24th method except for marine cargo
where the DAC pertains to the commissions for the last two months of the year.  The unamortized
acquisition costs are shown in the assets section of the statement of financial position as “Deferred
acquisition costs”.  Reinsurance commissions are deferred and shown in the liabilities section of
the statement of financial position as “Deferred reinsurance commissions”, subject to the same
amortization method as the related acquisition costs.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in
value.  The initial cost of the property and equipment comprises its purchase price, nonrefundable
taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets as
follows:

Years
Computer and electronic equipment 3
Furniture and fixtures 5

The estimated useful life and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
method and period of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits
from items of property and equipment.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.  Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the statement of income in the year the item is
derecognized.
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Investment Property
Investment properties are properties that are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes
or sale in the ordinary course of business.

Investment properties are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in
value.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of 10 years.
The estimated useful life and the depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
period and method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits
from items of investment properties.

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from its
disposal.  Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are
recognized in the statement of income in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to investment property when there is a change in use, evidenced by ending of
owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party or ending of construction
or development.  Transfers are made from investment property when, and only when, there is a
change in use, evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of
development with a view to sale.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company classifies its investment property under Level 3
of fair value hierarchy.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired.  If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.  An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.  Where the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount.  In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.  Impairment losses are
recognized in profit or loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is
any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased.  If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.  A previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized.  If such is
the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount.  That increased
amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
and amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.  Such
reversal is recognized in profit or loss unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case,
the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.  After such reversal, the depreciation and
amortization charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount,
less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
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Insurance Contract Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities are recognized when contracts are entered into and premiums are
charged.

Claims provision
Outstanding claims are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled
at the statement of financial position date, whether reported or not, together with related claims
handling costs and reduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries.  Delays can
be experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims, therefore the ultimate
cost of which cannot be known with certainty at the reporting date.  The liability is not discounted
for the time value of money and includes provision for claims reported.  The provision for claims
liability is based on the independent adjusters’ report on the individual claims.  No provision for
equalization or catastrophic reserves is recognized.  The liabilities are derecognized when the
contract is discharged, cancelled or has expired.

Provision for unearned premiums
The proportion of written premiums, gross of commissions payable to intermediaries, attributable
to subsequent periods or to risks that have not yet expired is deferred as provision for unearned
premiums.  The change in the provision for unearned premiums is taken to the statement of
income in the order that revenue is recognized over the period of risk.  Further provisions are
made to cover claims under unexpired insurance contracts which may exceed the unearned
premiums and the premiums due in respect of these contracts.

Liability adequacy test
At each reporting date, liability adequacy tests are performed, to ensure the adequacy of insurance
contract liabilities, net of related DAC.  In performing the test, current best estimates of future
cash flows, claims handling and policy administration expenses are used.  Changes in expected
claims that have occurred, but which have not been settled, are reflected by adjusting the liability
for claims and future benefits.  Any inadequacy is immediately charged to the statement of income
by establishing an unexpired risk provision for losses arising from the liability adequacy tests.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.  The following
specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Premiums
Premiums from short-duration insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the period of the
contracts using the 24th method.  The portion of the premiums written that relate to the unexpired
periods of the policies at reporting date and the last two months of marine cargo policies are
accounted for as provision for unearned premiums and is presented under “Insurance contract
liabilities” in the liabilities section of the statement of financial position. The net changes in this
account between reporting dates is charged against or credited to income for the year.

Commission income
Commissions earned from short-duration insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the
period of the contracts using the 24th method.

Investment income
· Interest income is recognized in the statement of income as it accrues, taking into account the

effective yield of the asset.  Interest income includes the amortization of any discount or
premium using the effective interest rate method.
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· Dividend income is recognized when the shareholders’ right to receive the payment is
established.

Revenue and cost recognition for sale of real estate properties
Revenue from sale of completed memorial lots is accounted for under the full accrual method.
When a sale of real estate does not meet the requirements for revenue recognition, the sale is
accounted for under the deposit method.  Under this method, the sale is not recognized, and the
receivable from the buyer is not recorded.  The real estate inventories continue to be reported on
the Company’s statement of financial position as “Real estate properties for sale”.

The cost of real estate properties recognized in statement of income on disposal is determined with
reference to the specific costs incurred on the property sold and an allocation of any non-specific
costs based on the relative size of the property sold.

Other income
All other income items are recognized in the statement of income when earned.

Expenses Recognition
Expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of outflows
or decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decrease in equity, other than those
relating to distributions to equity participants.

Benefits and claims
Gross benefits and claims consist of benefits and claims paid to policyholders and changes in the
gross valuation of insurance contract liabilities, except for gross changes in the provision for
unearned premiums which are included in net earned premiums.  It further includes internal and
external claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement of claims.
Insurance claims are recorded on the basis of notifications received.

Commission expense
Commissions incurred from short-duration insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the
period of the contracts using the 24th method, except for marine cargo insurance contracts where
the deferred portion pertains to the commissions for the last two months of the year.  The portion
of the commissions that relates to the unexpired periods of the policies at reporting date is
accounted for as “Deferred Acquisition Costs” and presented in the asset section of the statement
of financial position.

General expenses
Expenses are recognized in the statement of income in the period these are incurred.

Interest expense
Interest expense is recognized in the statement of income as incurred.

Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of
the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset.  A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:
a. There is a change in contractual term, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;
b. A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term of the renewal or

extension was initially included in the lease term;
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c. There is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified
asset; or

d. There is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios a, c or d above, and at the date
of renewal or extension period for scenario b.

Company as a lessee
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases.  Operating lease payments are recognized as expense in the
statement of income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  Minimum lease payments are
recognized on a straight-line basis while the variable rent is recognized as an expense based on the
terms of the lease contract.

Equity
Capital stock
Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued.

Contributed surplus
Contributed surplus represents contribution of shareholders to the Company in compliance with
the requirement of the Insurance Commission.

Retained earnings
Retained earnings represent the cumulative balance of net income or loss of the Company, net of
any dividend distribution.

Income Tax
Income tax for the year consists of current and deferred tax.  Income tax is determined in
accordance with Philippine tax laws.  Income tax is recognized in the statement of income, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income.
Tax on these items is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.  The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute this amount are those that have been enacted or substantially enacted as of the
reporting date.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences, with certain
exceptions, at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, with certain
exceptions.  Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences,
carryforward of unused tax credits from excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over
the regular corporate income tax and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent
that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and carryforward of unused tax credits from excess MCIT and NOLCO can
be utilized.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.  Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognized directly in the statement of
comprehensive income are likewise recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted as of end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

Movements in the deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from changes in the rates are charged
against or credited to operations for the period.

Value-Added Tax (VAT)
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax except:
· where the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax

authority, in which case the tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or
as part of the expense item as applicable; and,

· receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from the tax authority is included as part of other assets in the
Company’s statement of financial position.

Pension Cost
The Company has an unfunded, non-contributory retirement plan, covering its regular employees.
Retirement cost is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method.
This method reflects service rendered by employees to the date of valuation and incorporates
assumptions concerning employees’ projected salaries.

Defined retirement costs comprise the following:
(a) Service costs
(b) Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset
(c) Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
routine settlements are recognized as expense in profit and loss. Past service costs are recognized
when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated periodically by
independent qualified actuaries.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by
applying the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in
profit and loss.
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Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in
the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized
immediately in OCI under “Net remeasurement on loss on defined benefit plan” in the period in
which they arise. Remeasurements are not recycled to profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements.  They are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.  A contingent asset
is not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

Events After the Reporting Period
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s position at end of
the reporting period (adjusting event) are reflected in the financial statements.  Post year-end
events that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed when material to the financial statements.

3. Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires the Company to
make judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.  Future events may occur which will
cause the judgments and assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change.  The effects of
any change in judgments and estimates are reflected in the financial statements as they become
reasonably determinable.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be determinable under
the circumstances.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgments, apart from those involving estimates and assumptions, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Product classification
The significance of insurance risk is dependent on both the probability of an insured event and the
magnitude of its potential effect.  As a general guideline, the Company defines significant
insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event
that are at least 10% more than the benefits payable if the insured event did not occur.

The Company has determined that the insurance policies it issues have significant insurance risks
and therefore meet the definition of insurance contracts and should be accounted for as such.
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Financial assets not quoted in an active market
The Company classifies financial assets by evaluating, among others, whether the asset is quoted
or not in an active market.  Included in the evaluation on whether a financial asset is quoted in an
active market is the determination on whether quoted prices are readily and regularly available,
and whether those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s-
length basis.

The carrying value of AFS financial assets not quoted in an active market amounted to P=20,000 as
of December 31, 2014 and 2013 (see Note 6).

Operating Lease – Company as lessee
The Company has entered into commercial property lease with Pioneer Insurance & Surety
Corporation.  The Company has determined that the lessors retain all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the leased properties thus accounts for them as operating lease.

Estimates and Assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
statement of financial position date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Valuation of insurance contract liabilities
Estimates have to be made at the reporting date for the expected ultimate cost of both claims
reported and claims IBNR.  It takes a significant period of time before the ultimate claim cost can
be established with certainty and for some type of policies, IBNR claims form the majority of the
claims provision.

The primary technique adopted by management in estimating the cost of notified and IBNR claims
is that of using past claims settlement trends to predict future claims settlement trends.  At the each
reporting date, prior year claims estimates are assessed for adequacy and any changes made are
charged to provision for claims reported and claims IBNR.  Insurance claims liabilities are not
discounted for the time value of money.

The carrying value of claims payable and IBNR included in the insurance contract liabilities
amounted to P=26,822,522 and P=1,533,569 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively
(see Note 12).

Fair values of financial assets
The Company carries certain financial assets at fair value, which requires extensive use of
accounting estimates and judgments.  Fair value determinations for financial assets and liabilities
are based generally on listed or quoted market prices.  If prices are not readily determinable or if
liquidating the positions is reasonably expected to affect market prices, fair value is based on
either internal valuation models or management’s estimate of amounts that could be realized under
current market conditions, assuming an orderly liquidation over a reasonable period of time.

Impairment of AFS equity securities
The Company assesses its AFS equity securities for impairment when there has been a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost.  This determination of what is significant or
prolonged requires judgment.  The Company treats ‘significant’ generally as 30% or more of the
original cost of investment, and ‘prolonged’ as being greater than twelve months.  In making this
judgment, the Company evaluates, among other factors, the normal volatility in share price.  In
addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration in the financial
health of the investee, industry and sector performance, changes in technology, and operational
and financing cash flows.
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As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the carrying value of the Company’s AFS equity securities
amounted to P=20,000 (see Note 6).  The Company recognized impairment loss on AFS financial
assets amounting to nil and P=443,250 in 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 20).

Impairment of loans and receivables
The Company maintains an allowance for impairment losses at a level considered adequate to
provide for potential uncollectible receivables.  The level of this allowance is evaluated by
management on the basis of factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts.  These factors
include, but are not limited to, the length of the Company’s relationship with the debtor, the
debtor’s payment behavior and known market forces.  The Company reviews the age and status of
receivables, and identifies accounts that are to be provided with allowances on a continuous basis.

The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if the Company made
different judgments or utilized different estimates.  An increase in allowance for impairment
losses would increase recorded expenses and decrease the assets’ carrying values.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the carrying value of insurance receivables amounted to
P=38,688,912 and P=4,616,334, respectively.  The Company recognize impairment loss on insurance
receivables amounting to P=110,393 and nil  in 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 5).

Estimation of useful lives of property and equipment
The Company reviews annually the estimated useful lives of property and equipment based on the
period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. It is possible that future results of
operations could be materially affected by changes in these estimates. A reduction in the estimated
useful lives of these properties would increase recorded depreciation and amortization expense
and decrease the related asset accounts.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the carrying amount of property and equipment were
P=3,933,096 and nil, respectively (see Note 11).

Pension and other employee benefits
The cost of defined benefit plan and the present value of the pension obligation are determined
using actuarial valuation. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and
its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions.

While the Company believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant
differences in the actual experience or significant changes in the assumptions may materially
affect the pension obligation. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the market yields on
Philippine government bonds with terms consistent with the expected term of the defined benefit
obligation as of reporting date. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables in
the Philippines. Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

Recognition of deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all future tax deductibles to the extent that it is probable that
the taxable income will be available against which these temporary differences can be utilized.
Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable income together with
future tax planning strategies.
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The carrying value of deferred tax assets amounted to P=28,427,996 and P=923,984 as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 21).

Contingencies
The Company is currently involved in various legal proceedings.  The estimate of the probable
costs for the resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation with the legal counsels
and based upon an analysis of potential results.  The Company does not believe these proceedings
will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position.

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

2014 2013
Cash on hand P=15,000 P=5,500
Cash in bank 6,116,494 1,256,713
Cash equivalents 408,095,270 481,870,214

P=414,226,764 P=483,132,427

Cash in bank earns interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates.  Cash equivalents are made for
varying periods of up to three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Company, and earned interest at the respective short-term deposit rates ranging from 2.50% to
2.88% and 2.63% to 2.88% in 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Interest income from cash and cash equivalents amounted to P=12,547,226 and P=9,343,722 in 2014
and 2013, respectively (see Note 18).

5. Insurance Receivables - net

This account consists of:

2014 2013
Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses P=25,253,243 P=229,613
Funds held by ceding companies 6,550,998 3,600,989
Premiums receivable 5,984,546 –
Due from ceding companies 2,090,309 1,865,523

39,879,096 5,696,125
Less allowance for impairment losses (1,190,184) (1,079,791)

P=38,688,912 P=4,616,334

Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses pertains to the Company’s receivables from the reinsurers
for their share on the losses paid by the Company.  These amounts are due and demandable.
Funds held by ceding companies represents portion of the premium withheld by ceding companies
in accordance with reinsurance contracts.  These amounts are generally collected within one year
after the reporting date.

Premiums receivable represent premiums on written policies which are collectible within the
Company’s grace period.
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Due from ceding companies pertains to premiums collectible resulting from treaty and facultative
acceptances from ceding companies.  As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, allowance for
impairment losses on amounts due from ceding companies amounted to P=1,190,184 and
P=1,079,791, respectively.

The aging analyses of insurance receivables follow:

2014
30 to

60 days
61 to

120 days
121 to

180 days
More than

180 days Impaired Total
Reinsurance recoverable on paid

losses P=25,023,630 P=– P=– P=229,613 P=– P=25,253,243
Funds held by ceding companies 73,945 4,978,765 – 1,498,288 – 6,550,998
Premiums receivable 5,984,546 – – – – 5,984,546
Due from ceding companies 498,257 – – 401,868 1,190,184 2,090,309

P=31,580,378 P=4,978,765 P=– P=2,129,769 P=1,190,184 P=39,879,096

2013
30 to

60 days
61 to

120 days
121 to

180 days
More than

180 days Impaired Total
Reinsurance recoverable on paid

losses P=– P=– P=– P=229,613 P=– P=229,613
Funds held by ceding companies – 2,157,921 – 1,443,068 – 3,600,989
Due from ceding companies – – – 785,732 1,079,791 1,865,523

P=– P=2,157,921 P=– P=2,458,413 P=1,079,791 P=5,696,125

 The rollforward analysis of allowance for impairment losses on insurance receivables follow:

2014 2013
At January 1 P=1,079,791 P=1,079,791
Addition 110,393 –
At December 31 P=1,190,184 P=1,079,791

6. Financial Assets

The Company’s financial assets are summarized by measurement categories as follows:

2014 2013
AFS financial assets P=20,000 P=20,000
HTM investments 105,675,721 63,973,675

P=105,695,721 P=63,993,675

The assets included in each of the categories above are detailed below:

AFS financial assets
AFS financial assets represent equity instruments with unquoted market value of P=20,000 for 2014
and 2013.

HTM investments
HTM investments represent debt instruments issued by the Philippine government amounting to
P=105,675,721 and P=63,973,675 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.  During 2014, the
Company placed additional debt securities amounting to P=48,267,540.  The term of the issues range
from 5 to 20 years and earn coupon rates of 4.75% to 7.75%.
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Government debt securities are deposited with the Philippine Insurance Commission (IC) in
accordance with the provisions of the Insurance Code (the Code) for the benefit and security of
policyholders and creditors of the Company.  The face value of government debt securities
deposited with the IC amounted to P=62,500,000 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
Interest income from HTM investments amounted to P=4,436,011 and P=3,300,213 in 2014 and
2013, respectively (see Note 18).

The carrying values of financial assets have been determined as follows:

2014
AFS Financial

Assets
HTM

Investments Total
At January 1 P=20,000 P=63,973,675 P=63,993,675
Acquisitions – 48,267,540 48,267,540
Disposals/maturities – (6,250,000) (6,250,000)
Premium amortization – (315,494) (315,494)
At December 31 P=20,000 P=105,675,721 P=105,695,721

2013
AFS Financial

Assets
HTM

Investments Total
At January 1 P=7,688,045 P=63,752,254 P=71,440,299
Acquisitions – 3,636,177 3,636,177
Disposals/maturities (7,836,008) (3,200,000) (11,036,008)
Fair value losses 167,963 – 167,963
Premium amortization – (214,756) (214,756)
At December 31 P=20,000 P=63,973,675 P=63,993,675

7. Interest Receivable

This account consists of interest receivable on:

2014 2013
HTM investments P=1,399,949 P=816,280
Cash and cash equivalents 523,589 1,312,084

P=1,923,538 P=2,128,364

8. Deferred Acquisition Costs and Deferred Reinsurance Commissions

The rollforward analysis of deferred acquisition costs follows:

2014 2013
At January 1 P=1,126,403 P=1,036,612
Cost deferred during the year 14,791,940 2,221,570
Cost incurred during the year (6,901,811) (2,131,779)
At December 31 P=9,016,532 P=1,126,403

Deferred acquisition costs refer to the portion of commission expense that relate to the unexpired
periods of the policies as of the reporting date using the 24th method.
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The rollforward analysis of deferred reinsurance commissions follows:

2014 2013
At January 1 P=– P= –
Income earned during the year 283,924 –
Income deferred during the year (608,748) –
At December 31 P=324,824 P= –

Deferred  reinsurance  commissions  refer  to  the  portion  of  commission  income  that  relates  to  the
unexpired periods of the policies as of the reporting date using the 24th method.

9. Reinsurance Assets

This account consists of:

2014 2013
Deferred reinsurance premiums (Note 12) P=1,247,756 P=–
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses (Note 12) 49,224 49,224

P=1,296,980 P=49,224

Deferred  reinsurance  premiums  are  portions  of  the  ceded  premiums  that  relate  to  the  unexpired
periods of the policies as of the reporting date using the 24th method.

Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses is the reinsurer’s share on the losses or claims that is yet
to be settled by the Company.

10. Investment Properties

The Company’s investment property pertains to a condominium unit located at the 7th floor of
A&T Building, Binondo, Manila with an acquisition cost of P=11,966,201.

In 2013, the Company sold one of its condominium units for P=8,054,592 with carrying value of
P=10 at date of sale (see Note 18). The appraised value of the investment properties as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013 amounted to P=15,983,000 and P=15,734,612, respectively.  As at
December 31 2014 and 2013, the fair values of the property are based on valuations performed by
Cuervo Appraisers, Inc., an accredited independent valuer. Cuervo Appraisers, Inc. is a specialist
in valuing these types of investment properties The appraised value of investment properties is
classified under Level 3 of fair value hierarchy.  There were no changes in the valuation technique
used.
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The following table shows the valuation technique used and key inputs to valuation on investment
properties:

Valuation Technique
Significant
Unobservable Inputs

Range
(Weighted Average)

Sales Comparison Approach
(refer below)

Asking Price per square meter P=39,772 - P=42,553
Location -5.00% - 0.00%
Unit Floor Level -5.00% - 0.00%
Building Design -5.00% - 0.00%
Size -10.00% - +1.00%
Time Element 0.00% - 0.00%

The appraised value of the condominium units were determined using sales comparison approach.
This is a comparative approach to value that considers the sales of similar or substitute properties
and related market data and establishes a value estimate by processes involving comparison.
Listings and offerings may also be considered.  The properties used as basis for comparison are
situated within the subject building or in other comparable condominium buildings nearby.
Comparison would be premised on the factors such as floor level location, interior finishes,
parking slot allocation and facilities offered and the time element.

The Company has determined that the highest and best use of the property is its current use.

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, no property has been pledged as collateral or security for any
of the Company’s liabilities and the Company has no restrictions on the realizability of its land
and condominium units and no contractual obligation to purchase, construct or develop such
property or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

11. Property and Equipment - net

As of December 31, 2014, the movements of this account follows:

Computer
and Electronic

Equipment

Furniture,
Fixtures and

Equipment Total
At January 1, 2014 P=– P=– P=–
Additions during the year 4,193,130 12,900 4,206,030
Depreciation during the year (270,354) (2,580) (272,934)
At December 31, 2014 P=3,922,776 P=10,320 P=3,933,096

Depreciation of property and equipment amounted to P=272,394 and nil for 2014 and 2013,
respectively.
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12. Insurance Contract Liabilities and Reinsurance Assets

The analysis of insurance contract liabilities, net of reinsurers’ share of liabilities follows:

2014 2013

Insurance
Contract

Liabilities

Reinsurers’
Share of

Liabilities
(Note 9) Net

Insurance
Contract

Liabilities

 Reinsurers’
Share of

Liabilities
(Note 9) Net

Total provision for claims
reported P=26,822,522 P=49,224 P=26,773,298 P=1,533,569 P=49,224 P=1,484,346

Provision for unearned
premiums (Note 26) 45,592,978 1,247,756 44,345,222 6,882,582 – 6,882,582

P=72,415,500 P=1,296,980 P=71,118,520 P=8,416,152 P=49,224 P=8,366,928

 The analysis of total provision for claims reported follows:

2014 2013

Provision
for Claims

Reported

Reinsurers’
Share of

Liabilities
(Note 9) Net

Provision
for Claims

Reported

Reinsurers’
Share of

Liabilities
(Note 9) Net

At January 1 P=1,533,569 P=49,224 P=1,484,345 P=2,347,708 P=770,640 P=1,577,068
Claims incurred during the

year 106,438,175 31,055,034 75,383,141 2,004,075 – 2,004,075
Claims paid during the year

(Note 19) (81,149,222) (31,055,034) (50,094,188) (2,818,214) (721,416) (2,096,798)
At December 31 P=26,822,522 P=49,224 P=26,773,298 P=1,533,569 P=49,224 P=1,484,346

The provision for unearned premiums may be analyzed as follows:

2014 2013

Provision for
Unearned
Premiums

Reinsurers’
Share of

Liabilities
(Note 9) Net

Provision
for

Unearned
Premiums

Reinsurers’
Share of

Liabilities
 (Note 9) Net

At January 1 P=6,882,582 P=– P=6,882,582 P=6,819,366 P=– P=6,819,366
New policies written during

the year (Note 17) 74,285,001 18,039,589 56,245,412 13,079,097 – 13,079,097
Premiums earned during the

year (Note 17) (35,574,605) (16,791,833) (18,782,772) (13,015,881) – (13,015,881)
At December 31 P=45,592,978 P=1,247,756 P=44,345,222 P=6,882,582 P=– P=6,882,582

13. Insurance Payables

This account consists of:

2014 2013
Due to reinsurers P=2,581,918 P=1,969,475
Funds held for reinsurers 728 728

P=2,582,646 P=1,970,203
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The rollforward analysis of insurance payables follows:

Due to
Reinsurers

Funds Held
for Reinsurers Total

At January 1, 2013 P=2,781,397 P=728 P=2,782,125
Paid during the year (811,922) – (811,922)
At December 31, 2013 1,969,475 728 1,970,203
Arising during the year 1,781,254 – 1,781,254
Paid during the year (1,168,811) – (1,168,811)
At December 31, 2014 P=2,581,918 P=728 P=2,582,646

Due to reinsurers represents premiums payable on treaty and facultative reinsurance contracts.
These are non-interest-bearing and are generally settled within one year.

Funds held for reinsurers pertain to the retention of a certain percentage of the reinsurer’s share of
premium. This is to protect the Company from risks associated with collections of reinsurance
recoverable on paid losses. These amounts are interest-bearing and are generally settled within one
year after the reporting date.

14. Pension Cost

The Company follows the provisions of Art. 287 of the Labor Code of the Philippines by
providing for retirement pay to qualified private sector employees.

An employee upon reaching the age of sixty (60) years or more, but not beyond sixty-five (65)
years which is the compulsory retirement age, who has served at least five (5) years in the
Company, may retire and shall be entitled to retirement pay equivalent to at least one half (1/2)
month salary for every year of service, a fraction at least (6) months being considered as one year.

The principal assumptions used in determining pensions for the Company’s plan are shown below:

2014
Discount rate 4.75%
Rate of salary increase 6.00%
Average future working lives

(in years) 10.00

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each
significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2014, assuming all
other assumptions were held constant:

Increase
(decrease)

Impact on
present value

of defined
benefit plan

Discount rates +1% (P=362,032)
-1% 460,698

Future salary increases +1% 442,809
-1% (356,736)
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The maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments follow:

2014
Less than one year P=–
More than one year to five years –
More than five years to 10 years –
More than 10 years to 15 years –
More than 15 years to 20 years 380,091
More than 20 years 23,548,412

15. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

This account consists of:

2014 2013
Accounts payable P=11,159,921 P=–
Accrued expenses 10,332,374 1,248,240
Commissions payable 5,561,582 –
Taxes payable 3,748,168 –

P=30,802,045 P=1,248,240

Accounts payable consist of accommodations by Pioneer Life Inc.  These accommodations pertain
to claim payments made to Company’s policyholders.  These amounts are non-interest- bearing
and are generally settled within one year.

Accrued expenses include accruals for service awards liability and minimum and deposit
reinsurance premium for the treaty period May 2014 to April 2015.

 Commissions payable represent unpaid commissions to agents arising from policy issuances.
 Commission rates vary depending on the product line and coverage of the policy.

Taxes payable consist of documentary stamps tax, business tax, fire service tax, VAT and
withholding tax. These are subsequently remitted within one month after the reporting date.

16. Capital Stock

Capital stock
This account consists of:

2014 2013
Common shares - P=100
Authorized - 5,000,000 shares P=500,000,000 P=500,000,000
Issued and outstanding - 4,901,961 issued and

outstanding 490,196,100 490,196,100
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Following are the movements in capital stock:

2014 2013
At January 1 P=490,196,100 P=250,000,000
Issuance of shares – 240,196,100
At December 31 P=490,196,100 P=490,196,100

On June 26, 2013, the BOD authorized the amendment of the Articles of Incorporation for the
increase in authorized capital stock from P=250,000,000, divided into 500,000 common shares with
a par value of P=500 per share to P=500,000,000, divided into 5,000,000 common shares with a par
value of P=100 per share.  In addition, the BOD approved on June 26, 2013 the issuance of
2,303,921 shares and 98,040 shares to Center for Agriculture & Rural Development (CARD)
Mutual Benefit Association, Inc. (CARD MBA) and CARD MRI Insurance Agency, Inc.
(CaMIA), respectively for P=112 per share, with par value of P=100 per share.  The cash
consideration of P=230,392,100 and P=9,804,000 was received from CARD MBA and CaMIA,
respectively.  Consequently, PISC’s ownership in the Company decreased from 93.82% to 47.85%
(see Note 1).

Contributed surplus
In October 2013, CARD MBA and CaMIA paid P=27,647,052 and P=1,176,480, respectively as
addition to the contributed surplus.

On June 26, 2013, the BOD has approved the withdrawal and proportionate distribution of
contributed surplus to stockholders of record as of June 28, 2013 amounting to P=4,112,299 and
was paid on July 17, 2013.

17. Net Earned Premiums

Net earned premiums on insurance contracts are as follows:

2014 2013
Gross premiums written :

Direct P=55,571,404 P=–
Assumed 18,713,597 13,079,098

Total gross premiums written 74,285,001 13,079,098
Gross change in provision for unearned premiums (38,710,396) (63,217)
Total gross earned premiums 35,574,605 13,015,881
Reinsurers’ share of gross premiums written:

Direct 18,039,589 –
Assumed – –

Total reinsurer’s share of gross premiums written 18,039,589 –
Reinsurer’s share of change in provision for

unearned premiums (1,247,756) –
Total reinsurer’s share of gross earned premiums 16,791,833 –

P=18,782,772 P=13,015,881
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18. Investment and Other Income

This account consists of:

2014 2013
Interest income (Notes 4 and 6) P=16,983,237 P=12,643,935
Gain on sale of investment property (Note 10) – 8,054,582
Gain on sale of AFS financial assets (Note 6) – 1,000,289
Dividend income – 290,543
Other income 57,862 128,761

P=17,041,099 P=22,118,110

19. Insurance Contract Benefits and Claims Paid

Gross insurance contract benefits and claims paid follow:

2014 2013
Direct P=74,172,726 P=814,139
Assumed 6,978,496 2,004,075

P=81,149,222 P=2,818,214

In 2014 and 2013, the reinsurers’ share of insurance contracts benefits and claims paid from direct
insurance contracts amounted to P=31,055,034 and P=721,416, respectively.

20. General Expenses

This account consists of:

2014 2013
Salaries, allowances and benefits P=11,261,431 P=–
Business development 2,084,026 –
Underwriting expense 1,752,148 1,403,891
Office supplies, printing and stationery 1,287,544 –
Transportation and travel 1,454,918 59,593
Taxes and licenses 863,083 3,523,800
Association dues 763,223 577,847
Rent expense (Note 24) 740,124 85,330
Advertising 716,618 –
Communication, light and water 322,910 54,326
Janitorial and contractual services 279,662 –
Depreciation (Note 11) 272,934 –
Professional fees 190,639 186,552
Representation and entertainment 144,682 2,500
Meetings  and conferences 84,836 –
Repairs and maintenance 45,384 1,769,019
Insurance 44,838 102,084
Miscellaneous expenses 474,968 365,777

P=22,783,968 P=8,130,719
21. Income Tax
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The provision for (benefit from) income tax consists of:

2014 2013
Current

Final P=3,393,337 P=3,012,062
MCIT – 133,337

Deferred (25,226,578) 313,730
(P=21,833,241) P=3,459,129

The components of recognized deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities follow:

2014 2013
Deferred tax assets:

NOLCO P=15,556,583 –
Provision for IBNR 7,586,686 –
Excess of net provision for unearned premiums
 per books over tax basis 4,672,963 495,284
Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) 104,763 104,763
Deferred reinsurance commissions 97,446 –
Accrued service award liability 52,500 –
Allowance for impairment loss 357,055 323,937

28,427,996 923,984
Deferred tax liabilities:

Deferred acquisition costs (2,704,959) (337,921)
Unrealized foreign currency exchange gain (19,172) (108,776)

(2,724,131) (446,697)
P=25,703,865 P=477,287

As of December 31, 2014, the unexpired portion of MCIT and NOLCO, which may be applied
against the Company’s future taxable income and deducted against future tax liability, amounted
to P=104,763 and P=15,556,583, respectively.

The movements in NOLCO in 2014 follow:

At January 1 P=–
Additions 15,556,583
At December 31 P=15,556,583

The movements in MCIT are as follows:

2014 2013
At January 1 P=104,763 P=–
Additions – 104,763
At December 31 P=104,763 P=104,763
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The unexpired portion of MCIT that arose in 2013 will expire in 2016 while the NOLCO that
arose in 2014 will expire in 2017.

The reconciliation of provision for income tax computed at statutory income tax rate to the
provision for income tax reported in the statements of income follows:

2014 2013
Income tax at statutory tax rate (P=20,781,966) P=6,812,094
Add (deduct) the tax effects of:

Nondeductible expenses 127,662 231,779
Nontaxable income – (387,250)
Interest income subject to final tax (1,718,993) (1,264,394)
Income subject to lower tax rate – (1,933,100)
Unrecognized deferred tax assets on pension

liability 540,056 –
Provision for (benefit from) income tax (P=21,833,241) P=3,459,129

22. Reconciliation of Net Income under PFRS to Statutory Net Income

The reconciliation of net income (loss) under PFRS to statutory net income follows:

2014 2013
Net income (loss) under PFRS (P=47,439,978) P=19,247,850
Add (deduct):

Deferred acquisition costs - net (7,890,129) (89,791)
Difference in change in provision for
 unearned premiums - net 13,925,600 (848,262)
Tax effect on the reconciling items (1,810,641) 281,416

Statutory net income (loss) (P=43,215,148) P=18,591,213

23. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
other party, or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions.  Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence.

Transactions with related parties are made at normal market prices.  Outstanding balances as of
year-end are unsecured, interest free and settled in cash.  There have been no guarantees provided
or received for any related party receivables or payables.  For the years ended December 31, 2014
and 2013, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed
by related parties.  This assessment is undertaken each financial year by examining the financial
position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.
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Significant related party transactions are summarized below:

2014

Category Volume
Outstanding

balance Terms Conditions
Entity under common control
PISC

Due to reinsurer (a) ( Note 13) P=1,681,504 P=512,695 Non-interest-bearing,
due and demandable

Unsecured

Due from ceding company (a)
(Note 5)

459,769 459,769 Non-interest-bearing,
due and demandable

Unsecured

Rent expense (b) 740,124 – Non-interest-bearing,
due and demandable

Unsecured

PLI
     Payables (c) ( Note 15) (10,326,239) (10,326,239) Non-interest-bearing,

due and demandable
Unsecured

     Receivables (c) 2,880,119 2,880,119 Non-interest-bearing,
due and demandable

Unsecured

PIIC
Due from ceding company (a)
( Note 5)

38,487 38,487 Non-interest-bearing,
due and demandable

Unsecured

2013

Category Volume
Outstanding

Balance Terms Conditions
Entity under common control
PISC
 Transfer of assets (d) P=11,544,821 P=– Demandable Irrevocable

Rent expense (b) 85,330 – Demandable Irrevocable

The Company’s related party transactions pertain to the following:

a. In the ordinary course of business, the Company accepts and cedes insurance business under
various reinsurance contracts with PISC and PIIC.  Amounts of due to and due from PISC and
PIIC are the outstanding insurance balances related to these acceptances and cessions.

b. The Company has a lease contract with PISC on the lease of its office space, which is
renewable annually.

c. The Company has receivable from (payables to) PLI which represents share on the premium
payment and accommodations for claim payments.

d. In 2013, the Company sold memorial lots with carrying amount of P=11,544,821.

24. Operating Lease Commitment

The Company has entered into a lease agreement for its office space with PISC (see Note 23).
The lease has a term of one (1) year, commencing on January 1, 2014 and expiring on of
December 31, 2014. The lease contract was subsequently renewed for another period from
January 31 to December 31, 2015.

Rent expense incurred by the Company amounted to P=740,124 and P=85,330 in 2014 and 2013,
respectively (see Note 20).
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Future minimum rentals payable under the operating lease agreement amounted to P=807,408 and
P=740,124 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, which are all payable within one (1)
year.

25. Capital Management

The Company maintains a certain level of capital to ensure sufficient solvency margins and to
adequately protect the policyholders.  The level of capital maintained is usually higher than the
minimum capital requirements set by the regulators and the amount computed under the
Risk-Based Capital (RBC) Model.

To ensure compliance with these externally imposed capital requirements, it is the Company’s
policy to monitor the paid-up capital, net worth and RBC requirements on a quarterly basis as part
of the Company’s internal financial reporting process.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company fully complied with the externally-imposed
capital requirements during the reported financial periods.  These are the fixed capitalization
requirement and RBC requirement.

Fixed Capitalization Requirements
On January 13, 2015, the Insurance Commission issued Circular Letter No. 2015-02-A clarifying
the minimum capitalization and networth requirements of new and existing insurance companies
in the Philippines.  All domestic life and non-life insurance companies duly licensed by the
Insurance Commission must have a networth of at least 250.0 million by December 31, 2013.

(Sec. 194)  The minimum networth of the said companies shall remain unimpaired at all times and
shall increase to the amounts as follows:

Minimum Networth Compliance Date
550,000,000 December 31 ,2016
900,000,000 December 31, 2019

1,300,000,000 December 31, 2022

As of December 31, 2014, the Company has complied with the minimum paid-up capital and net
worth requirements.

On June 26, 2013, the BOD authorized the amendment of the articles of incorporation for the
increase in authorized capital stock from P=250,000,000, divided into 500,000 common shares with
a par value of P=500 per share to P=500,000,000, divided into 5,000,000 common shares with a par
value of P=100 per share.  In addition, the BOD approved the issuance of 2,303,921 shares and
98,040 shares to Center for Agriculture & Rural Development (CARD) Mutual Benefit
Association, Inc. (CARD MBA) and CARD MRI Insurance Agency, Inc. (CaMIA), respectively
for P=112 per share, with par value of P=100 per share.  The cash consideration of P=230,392,100 and
P=9,804,000 was received from CARD MBA and CaMIA, respectively.  Consequently, PISC’s
ownership in the Company decreased from 93.82% to 47.85% (see Note 1).
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RBC Requirements
IMC No. 7-2006 adopted the RBC framework for the nonlife insurance industry to establish the
required amounts of capital to be maintained by the companies in relation to their investment and
insurance risks.  Every nonlife insurance company is annually required to maintain a minimum
required RBC ratio of 100% and not fail the trend test.  Failure to meet the minimum RBC ratio
shall subject the nonlife insurance company to the corresponding regulatory intervention which
has been defined at various levels.

The RBC ratio shall be calculated as net worth divided by the RBC requirement.  Net worth shall
include the Company’s paid-up capital, contributed and contingency surplus and unassigned
surplus.  Revaluation and fluctuation reserve accounts shall form part only to the extent authorized
by the IC.

The following table shows how the RBC ratio was determined by the Company based on its
calculations:

2014 2013
Net worth P=460,453,320 P=542,565,611
RBC capital 44,571,415 7,224,472
RBC ratio 1033% 7510%

The final RBC ratio can be determined only after the accounts of the Company have been
examined by the IC specifically as to admitted and non-admitted assets as defined under the Code.

Consolidated Compliance Framework
IMC 10-2006 integrated the compliance standards for the fixed capitalization and RBC
framework.  The fixed capitalization requirement for a given period may be suspended for insurers
that comply with the required RBC hurdle rate, provided that the industry complies with the
required Industry RBC Ratio Compliance Rate.  The IMC provides the annual schedule of
progressive rates for the Industry RBC Ratio Compliance Rates and the RBC Hurdle Rates from
2007 to 2011.  For the review year 2013 which shall be based on the 2012 synopsis, the Industry
RBC Ratio Compliance Rate is 90% and the RBC Hurdle Rate is 250%.  For the review year 2012
which shall be based on the 2011 synopsis, the Industry RBC Ratio Compliance Rate is 90% and
the RBC Hurdle Rate is 250%.  Failure to achieve one of the rates will result in the imposition of
the fixed capitalization requirement for the period under review.  As of December 31, 2014 and
2013, the Company has complied with the RBC requirement.

26. Management of Insurance and Financial Risk

Insurance Risk
The risk under insurance contract is the possibility of occurrence of insured event and uncertainty
of the amount and timing of the resulting claim.  The principal risk the Company faces under such
contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of insurance
liabilities.  This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims and actual benefits
paid are greater than originally estimated.
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The variability of risks is improved by diversification of risk of loss to a large portfolio of
insurance contracts as a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the board by
change in any subset of the portfolio.  The variability of risks can also be improved by careful
selection and implementation of underwriting strategy and guidelines.

The majority of reinsurance business ceded is placed on a quota share basis with retention limits.
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the assumptions
used for ascertaining the underlying policy benefits and are presented in the statements of
financial position as reinsurance assets.

Although the Company has reinsurance agreements, it is not relieved of its direct obligations to its
policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to reinsurance ceded, to the extent that
any reinsurers is unable to meet its obligations assumed under such reinsurance agreements.

The Company’s placement of reinsurance is diversified such that it is neither dependent on a
single reinsurer nor are the operations of the Company substantially dependent upon any single
reinsurance contract.

The business of the Company mainly comprises of short-term nonlife insurance contracts.

The Company principally issues the following types of general insurance contracts: fire,
engineering, marine, motor car, personal accident and miscellaneous casualty.

The table below sets out the concentration of the claims liabilities by type of contract
(see Note 12).

2014

Gross Claims
Liabilities

Reinsurers’
Share of Claims

Liabilities Net
Fire P=26,722,449 P=49,224 P=26,673,225
General Accident 100,073 – 100,073

P=26,822,522 P=49,224 P=26,773,298

2013

Gross Claims
Liabilities

Reinsurers’
Share of Claims

Liabilities Net
Fire P=1,533,569 P=49,224 P=1,484,345

P=1,533,569 P=49,224 P=1,484,345

Key assumptions
The principal assumption underlying the estimates is the Company’s past claims development
experience.  This includes assumptions in respect of average claim costs, claims handling costs,
claims inflation factors and number of claims for each accident year.  Judgment is used to assess
the extent to which external factors such as judicial decisions and government legislation affect
the estimates.

Other key assumptions include variations in interest, delays in settlement and changes in foreign
currency rates.



62

- 42 -

*SGVFS009510*

Sensitivities
The insurance claims provision is sensitive to the above key assumptions.  Because of delays that
arise between occurrence of a claim and its subsequent notification and eventual settlement, the
outstanding claim provisions are not known with certainty at the reporting dates.

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all
other assumptions held constant, showing the impact on gross and net liabilities and income before
income tax.  The correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the
ultimate claims liabilities, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in assumptions,
assumptions had to be changed on an individual basis.  It should be noted that movements in these
assumptions are nonlinear.

2014

Change in
Assumptions

Impact on
Gross Insurance

Contract
Liabilities

Impact on
Net Insurance

Contract
Liabilities

Impact on
Income Before

Income Tax
Average claim costs +10% P=4,086 P=– P=4,086
Average number of claims +10% 3,393 – 3,393

2013

Change in
Assumptions

Impact on
Gross Insurance

Contract
Liabilities

Impact on
Net Insurance

Contract
Liabilities

Impact on
Income Before

Income Tax
Average claim costs +10% P=46,317 P=16,211 P=30,106
Average number of claims +10% 46,317 16,211 30,106

Average claim costs and number of claims used for valuation are selected with consideration for
statutory requirements, as specified in the Code.

The method used for deriving sensitivity information and significant assumptions did not change
from the previous period.

Claims development table
The following tables reflect the cumulative incurred claims, including both claims notified and
claim IBNR, for each successive accident year at each statement of financial position date,
together with cumulative payment to date.

Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities for 2014

Accident year
2010 and

Prior Years 2011 2012 2013 2014 Total
Estimate of ultimate claim costs
At the end of accident year P=44,777,730 P=7,633,809 P=– P=– P=106,438,175 P=106,438,175
One year later     44,777,730 7,633,809 – – – –
Two years later     44,777,730 7,633,809 – – – 7,633,809
Three years later     44,777,730 – – – – 8,420,817
Four years later 36,685,867 – – – – 36,685,867
Current estimate of cumulative claims 45,106,684 7,633,809 – – 106,438,175 78,029,445
Cumulative payments to date 45,004,065 6,202,859 – – 81,149,222 51,206,924
Liability recognized in the statement

of financial position P=102,619 P=1,430,950 P=– P=– P=25,288,953 P=26,822,522



63

- 43 -

*SGVFS009510*

Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities for 2013

Accident year
2009 and

Prior Years 2010 2011 2012 2013 Total
Estimate of ultimate claim costs
At the end of accident year P=36,356,913 P=8,420,817 P=7,633,809 P=– P=– P=–
One year later 36,356,913 8,420,817 7,633,809 – – –
Two years later 36,356,913 8,420,817 7,633,809 – – 7,633,809
Three years later 36,356,913 8,420,817 – – – 8,420,817
Four years later 36,685,867 – – – – 36,685,867
Current estimate of cumulative claims 36,685,867 8,420,817 7,633,809 – – 52,740,493
Cumulative payments to date 36,583,248 8,420,817 6,202,859 – – 51,206,924
Liability recognized in the statement

of financial position P=102,619 P=– P=1,430,950 P=– P=– P=1,533,569

Governance Framework
The Company has established a risk management function with clear terms of reference and with
the responsibility for developing group wide policies on credit, liquidity and market risk.  It also
supports the effective implementation of policies at the overall group and the individual business
unit levels.

The policies define the Company’s identification of risk and its interpretation, its limit structure to
ensure the appropriate quality and diversification of assets, the alignment of underwriting and
reinsurance strategy to the corporate goals and the specification of reporting requirements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Due to short-term nature of cash and cash equivalents, insurance receivables, interest receivable,
insurance payables and trade and other payables, the carrying values reasonably approximate fair
value as of the reporting date.

The fair values of financial assets at AFS financial assets were determined using quoted market
prices.  For the unquoted equity securities, these are carried at cost less allowance for impairment
losses due to unpredictable nature of future cash flows and the lack of other suitable methods of
arriving at a reliable fair value.

Due to the long-term nature of the HTM investments, its carrying value differs from its fair value.
The fair value of HTM investments is based on the quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting date.  The fair value of HTM investments amounted to P=107,297,601 and P=57,495,549
as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Financial Risk
The Company is exposed to financial risk through its financial assets and financial liabilities,
particularly, credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (foreign exchange, interest rate, and equity
price risks).  The Company’s risk management policies and practices are documented in the
subsequent paragraphs.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss arising from its counterparties that fail to
discharge their contractual obligations.

Prior to extending credit, the Company manages its credit risk by assessing the credit quality of its
counterparty.  The Company has a credit policy group that reviews all information about the
counterparty which may include its statements of financial position, statements of income,
statements of comprehensive income and other market information and implements the internal
rating system of the Company.  The nature of the obligation is likewise considered.  Based on this
analysis, the credit analyst assigns the counterparty a credit rating to determine whether or not
credit may be provided.
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Credit risk limit is also used to manage credit exposure which specifies credit limit for each
intermediary depending on the size of its portfolio and its ability to meet its obligation based on
past experience.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the carrying values of the Company’s financial instruments
represent the maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date.

The following table provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the Company by
classifying financial assets according to credit ratings of the counterparties:

2014

Investment
Grade

Below
Investment

Grade
Past Due or

Impaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents* P=414,211,764 P=– P=– P=414,211,764
Insurance receivables
 Reinsurance recoverable on paid

losses 25,023,630 – 229,613 25,253,243
 Funds held by ceding companies 5,052,710 – 1,498,288 6,550,998
 Premiums receivable 5,984,546 – 5,984,546
 Due from ceding companies 498,256 – 1,592,053 2,090,309
AFS financial assets
 Unlisted equity securities 20,000 – – 20,000
HTM investments
 Government debt securities 105,675,721 – – 105,675,721
Interest receivable 1,923,538 – – 1,923,538
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses – – 49,224 49,224

P=558,390,165 P=– P=3,369,178 P=561,759,343
* Cash and cash equivalents exclude petty cash fund.

2013

Investment
Grade

Below
Investment

Grade
Past Due or

Impaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents* P=483,126,927 P=– P=– P=483,126,927
Insurance receivables
 Funds held by ceding companies – – 3,600,989 3,600,989
 Due from ceding companies – – 1,865,523 1,865,523
 Reinsurance recoverable on paid

losses – – 229,613 229,613
AFS financial assets
 Unlisted equity securities 20,000 – – 20,000
HTM investments
 Government debt securities 63,973,675 – – 63,973,675
Interest receivable 2,128,364 – – 2,128,364
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses – – 49,224 49,224

P=549,248,966 P=– P=5,745,349 P=554,994,315
* Cash and cash equivalents exclude petty cash fund.

Investment grade financial assets are assets which have strong capacity to meet the Company’s
financial commitments and are unsusceptible to adverse effects of changes in economic
conditions.

Below investment grade financial assets are assets which are vulnerable to impairment due to the
assets’ significant speculative characteristics.  Adverse economic conditions will likely impair
below investment grade financial assets.
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The aging analysis of financial assets that are past due but not impaired follows:

2014
Past due but not impaired

30 days
past due

60 days
past due

More than
60 days

past due

Total
past due but
not impaired Impaired Total

Reinsurance recoverable
on paid losses P=– P=– P=229,613 P=229,613 P=– P=229,613

Funds held by ceding
companies – – 1,498,288 1,498,288 – 1,498,288

Due from ceding
companies – – 401,869 401,869 1,190,184 1,592,053

Reinsurance recoverable
on unpaid losses – – 49,224 49,224 – 49,224

P=– P=– P=2,178,994 P=2,178,994 P=1,190,184 P=3,369,178

2013
Past due but not impaired

30 days
past due

60 days
past due

More than
60 days
past due

Total
past due but
not impaired Impaired Total

Funds held by ceding
companies P=– P=– P=3,600,989 P=3,600,989 P=– P=3,600,989

Due from ceding
companies – – 785,733 785,733 1,079,790 1,865,523

Reinsurance recoverable
on paid losses – – 229,613 229,613 – 229,613

Reinsurance recoverable
on unpaid losses – – 49,224 49,224 – 49,224

P=– P=– P=4,665,559 P=4,665,559 P=1,079,790 P=5,745,349

The Company considers premiums receivable as past due when it is outstanding for more than 90
days. Funds held by ceding companies, due from ceding companies premiums receivable,
reinsurance recoverable on paid losses, and are treated as past due when outstanding for more than
180 days.

The credit quality of the financial assets was determined as follows:

a. Cash and cash equivalents
These are classified as investment grade.  These are deposited, placed or invested in local
banks belonging to the top banks in the Philippines in terms of resources and profitability.

b. Insurance receivables
The Company uses a credit rating concept based on the borrower’s overall credit worthiness.
Investment grade is given to borrowers and counterparties having good standing in terms of
credit and paying habits and their outstanding account balance does not exceed 30% of their
total production.  Below investment grade is given to borrowers and counterparties having low
standing in terms of credit and paying habits and their outstanding balance exceeds 50% of
their total production.

c. Debt securities
These are classified as investment grade.  The government debt securities are issued by local
government authority and are considered as risk-free debt securities.

d. Equity securities
Equity securities subject to other-than-temporary decline are classified as investment grade.
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Liquidity risk
Liquidity or funding risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
commitments as they fall due.  Liquidity risks may result from either the inability to sell financial
assets quickly at their fair values; the counterparty failing to repay a contractual obligation;
insurance liabilities falling due for payment earlier than expected; or inability to generate cash
inflows as anticipated.

An institution may suffer from a liquidity problem when its credit rating falls.  The Company is
also exposed to liquidity risk if markets on which it depends on are subject to loss of liquidity.
The major liquidity risk confronting the Company is the potential daily calls on its available cash
resources in respect of claims arising from insurance contracts.

The Company manages liquidity through a liquidity risk policy which determines what constitutes
liquidity risk for the Company; specifies minimum proportion of funds to meet emergency calls;
sets up policies on contingency funding plans; specifies the sources of funding and the events that
would trigger the plan as wells as concentration of funding sources; requires reporting of liquidity
risk exposures and breaches to the monitoring authority; and calls for monitoring of compliance
with liquidity risk policy and review of liquidity risk policy.

The tables below group the financial assets and liabilities of the Company as of December 31 into
their relevant maturity groups based on the remaining period at the reporting date to their
undiscounted contractual maturities or expected repayment dates.

2014

Up to a year 1-3 years
More than

3 years
No

Maturity Date Total
Loans and receivable
Cash and cash equivalents P=414,211,764 P=– P=– P=– P=414,211,764
Insurance receivables 38,688,912 – – – 38,688,912
Interest receivable 1,923,538 – – – 1,923,538
AFS financial assets
Unlisted equity securities – – – 20,000 20,000
HTM investments – 10,885,043 94,790,678 – 105,675,721
Total financial assets P=454,824,214 P=10,885,043 P=94,790,678 P=20,000 P=560,519,935
Other financial liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities P=72,415,500 P=– P=– P=– P=72,415,500
Insurance payables 2,582,648 – – – 2,582,648
Accrued expenses and other

liabilities* 27,053,877 – – – 27,053,877
Total financial liabilities P=102,052,025 P=– P=– P=– P=102,052,025
*Accrued expenses and other liabilities exclude taxes payables.

2013

Up to a year 1-3 years
More than

3 years
No

Maturity Date Total
Loans and receivable
Cash and cash equivalents P=483,132,427 P=– P=– P=– P=483,132,427
Insurance receivables 4,616,334 – – – 4,616,334
Interest receivable 2,128,364 – – – 2,128,364
AFS financial assets
Unlisted equity securities – – – 20,000 20,000
HTM investments 6,254,960 7,303,757 50,414,958 – 63,973,675
Total financial assets P=496,132,085 P=7,303,757 P=50,414,958 P=20,000 P=553,870,800
Other financial liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities P=8,416,152 P=– P=– P=– P=8,416,152
Insurance payables 1,970,203 – – – 1,970,203
Accrued expenses and other

liabilities* 267,410 – – – 267,410
Total financial liabilities P=10,653,765 P=– P=– P=– P=10,653,765
*Accrued expenses and other liabilities exclude taxes payables.



67

- 47 -

*SGVFS009510*

Market risk
Market risk is the risk of changes in fair value of financial instruments from fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates (currency risk), market interest rates (interest rate risk) and market prices (price
risk), whether such changes is caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or its issuer
or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

The Company manages market risk by evenly distributing capital among investment instruments,
sectors and geographical areas.

The Company structures levels of market risk it accepts through a sound market risk policy based
on specific guidelines set by an Investment Committee.  This policy sets certain limits on exposure
to investments mostly with top-rated banks, which are selected on the basis of the banks’ credit
ratings, capitalization and quality servicing being rendered to the Company.

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s principal transactions are carried out in
Philippine Peso and its exposure to foreign exchange risk is minimal.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value/future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The following table sets out the Company’s financial instruments exposed to interest rate risk by
maturity.

December 31, 2014
Range of

Interest Rate Up to a year 1 to 3 years
More than

 3 years
No Maturity

Date Total
Cash and cash equivalents 2.50% - 2.88% P=414,226,764 P=– P=– P=– P=414,226,764
HTM investments 4.75% - 7.75% – 10,885,043 94,790,678 – 105,675,721
Total interest-bearing

financial assets P=414,226,764 P=10,885,043 P=94,790,678 P=– P=519,902,485
Premium reserve withheld for

treaty reinsurers 6.00% P=728 P=– P=– P=– P=728
Total interest-bearing

financial liabilities P=728 P=– P=– P=– P=728

December 31, 2013
Range of

Interest Rate Up to a year 1 to 3 years
More than

 3 years
No Maturity

Date Total
Cash and cash equivalents 2.63% - 2.88% P=483,126,927 P=– P=– P=– P=483,126,927
Funds held by ceding

companies 1.00% - 5.00% 3,600,989 – – – 3,600,989
HTM investments 4.75% - 7.75% 6,254,960 7,303,757 50,414,958 – 63,973,675
Total interest-bearing

financial assets P=492,982,876 P=7,303,757 P=50,414,958 P=– P=550,701,591
Premium reserve withheld for

treaty reinsurers 6.00% P=728 P=– P=– P=– P=728
Total interest-bearing

financial liabilities P=728 P=– P=– P=– P=728

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company’s investments relate primarily to fixed-rate debt
securities that are classified as HTM investments carried at amortized cost.  Therefore, change in
fair value interest rates will have no impact in the Company’s income before income tax and
equity.



68

- 48 -

*SGVFS009510*

Equity price risk
The Company’s price risk exposure at year-end relates mainly to the Company’s AFS financial
assets whose values will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.

The Company’s market risk policy requires it to manage such risks by setting and monitoring
objectives and constraints on investments; diversification plan; limits on investment in each
country, sector and market.

As of December 31, 2014, no change in market price is expected by the Company since it did not
have AFS financial assets carried at fair value.

27. Supplementary Tax Information Required under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

In compliance with the requirements set forth by RR 15-2010 hereunder are the information on
taxes and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year.

VAT
The Company is a VAT-registered company with VAT output tax declaration of P=6,025,366 for
the year based on the amount reflected in the net insurance premiums of P=50,211,383.

The amount of VAT input taxes claimed are broken down as follows:

Balance at January 1, 2014 P=289,863
Current year’s purchases:

Services 1,219,202
Goods other than for resale 473,657
Capital goods subject to amortization 465,113

2,447,835
Input VAT applied to output VAT 1,708,362

P=739,473

Other Taxes and Licenses
The taxes and licenses paid and claimed by the Company in 2014 as itemized deductions are as
follows:

Local
Mayor’s permit and municipal license P=84,500
Real estate tax 103,383

187,883

National
Insurance Commission fees 249,160
Renewal of VAT registration 500

249,660
P=437,543
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The Company has taxes relating to nonlife insurance policies that has been shifted or passed on to
the policy holders and are not recognized in the statement of income.  Details follow:

Documentary stamps tax P=6,344,018
Local government tax 114,814
Fire service tax 311,234

P=6,770,066

Withholding Taxes
The amount of expanded withholding taxes paid and accrued for the year amounted to:

Withholding taxes on compensation and benefits P=1,202,970
Expanded withholding taxes 825,798

P=2,028,768

Tax Assessments and Cases
On November 25, 2014, the Company received a preliminary assessment notice from the Large
Taxpayers Service of the Bureau of Internal Revenue covering the taxable year 2011.  Of the total
assessment, the Company paid P=645,002 deficiency taxes, inclusive of penalties and interest. As at
year end, the case was considered closed and terminated.



70


